

# Whistleblower Policy





# **Table of contents**

Whistleblower Policy

Version 6.0

Intro	ductio	າ	4		
1.	Purpose				
2.	Objectives				
3.	What disclosures qualify for protection under the Corporations Act?				
	3.1.	Disclosures to ASIC, APRA or a prescribed body	5		
	3.2.	Disclosure to eligible recipients	5		
	3.3.	Disclosure to a legal practitioner	5		
	3.4.	Emergency disclosures	6		
	3.5.	Public interest disclosures	6		
4.	What	conduct may be the subject of a qualifying disclosure?	6		
5.	Who can make a qualifying disclosure and who are eligible whistleblowers?				
6.	How can a disclosure be made?				
7.	What	needs to be provided when making a qualifying disclosure?	8		
8.	What protections does an eligible whistleblower have under the Corporations Act?				
9.	Are whistleblowers protected under other legislation?				
10.	The Reporting System				
	10.1.	Contact persons within TH and NMH	9		
11.	Roles and Responsibilities				
	11.1.	Eligible whistleblowers	9		
	11.2.	Eligible recipients	9		
	11.3.	Investigation Officer	10		
	11.4.	Support Officer	10		
12.	Identi	ty of whistleblower	10		
13.	Collating information		11		
14.	Receiv	ving and assessing disclosures	11		
15.	Investigations				
	15.1.	Introduction	11		
	15.2.	Investigation Plan	12		
	15.3.	Procedural fairness	12		
	15.4.	Conduct of the investigation	12		
	15.5.	Reporting requirements	13		
16.	Action taken after the investigation				



	16.1.	Action to be taken	13
	16.2.	Investigator's final report	13
17.	Provid	ling support to a whistleblower	13
	17.1.	Commitment to protecting an eligible whistleblower	13
	17.2.	Threatening or causing detriment to an eligible whistleblower	14
	17.3.	Eligible whistleblower implicated in misconduct	14
18.	Management of the persons against whom a disclosure has been made		
19.	Amendments to Schedule A		
20.	Availability of this Policy		
21.	Breach of this Policy		
22	Definitions		15



#### Introduction

The Board of Teachers Federation Health Limited (TFH) trading as Teachers Health (TH) is committed to the highest standards of conduct and ethical behaviour in all of its business activities, and to promoting and supporting a culture of honest and ethical behaviour, corporate compliance and good corporate governance.

TH supports and encourages the disclosure of information concerning illegal or unethical activities or misconduct within TH or its subsidiary Nurses & Midwives Health (NMH), and will deal with such disclosures promptly.

The TH Board and the NMH Board are committed to observing applicable laws that concern the protection of specific individuals when making a disclosure of information that qualifies for protection.

TH and NMH will take all reasonable steps to meet its obligations under applicable laws in relation to the protection of *whistleblowers*.

This Policy applies to all *eligible whistleblowers* (term defined below) and to disclosures of information that amount to a *disclosable matter*. However, this Policy does not apply to member complaints or a disclosure of information by a person to the extent that the information disclosed concerns a *personal work-related grievance* of the person and does not concern a contravention, or an alleged contravention, of section 1317AC of the Corporations Act that involves detriment caused to the person/discloser or a threat made to the person/discloser.

This Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis (usually every two years) or more frequently in the event of material changes (e.g. legislative, regulatory and best practice etc).

This Policy is not incorporated into an employee's contract of employment and does not operate to impose contractual obligations on TH.



#### 1. Purpose

The purpose of the Whistleblower Policy is to comply with TH and NMH's obligations under applicable legislation, including the Corporations Act and the Taxation Administration Act about:

- (a) the protections available to eligible whistleblowers;
- (b) to whom qualifying disclosures may be made, and how they may be made;
- (c) how TH will support *eligible whistleblowers* and protect them from *detriment*;
- (d) how TH or NMH, as the case may be, will investigate disclosures that qualify for protection;
- (e) how TH will ensure fair treatment of employees of TH who are mentioned in disclosures that qualify for protection, or to whom such disclosures relate; and
- (f) how this Policy is to be made available to officers and employees of TH.

The Policy will help improve TH's culture and transparency in relation to handling disclosures that fall within the scope of this Policy. All new employees will be provided with training regarding the Whistleblower Policy during the induction process, and a copy will also be made available on TH's intranet and TH's/NMH's website as well in line with section 20 of this Policy. Any employee who makes a disclosure to an *eligible recipient* will also be provided with a copy of this Policy.

A potential discloser may contact any of the *eligible recipients* to obtain additional information before making a disclosure.

#### 2. Objectives

The objectives of the Whistleblower Policy are:

- (a) to encourage and facilitate the making of disclosures of information;
- (b) to provide information to officers and employees of TH on the protections available to *eligible whistleblowers*; and
- (c) to meet TH and NMH's obligations under applicable legislation, including the Corporations Act and the Taxation Administration Act.

#### 3. What disclosures qualify for protection under the Corporations Act?

#### 3.1. Disclosures to ASIC, APRA or a prescribed body

A disclosure by an *eligible whistleblower* to ASIC, APRA, or other Commonwealth body prescribed by regulation, qualifies for protection under the Corporations Act if it is of information about a *disclosable matter*.

#### 3.2. Disclosure to eligible recipients

A disclosure by an *eligible whistleblower* to an *eligible recipient* qualifies for protection under the Corporations Act if it is of information about a *disclosable matter*.

#### 3.3. Disclosure to a legal practitioner

A disclosure to a legal practitioner for the purposes of obtaining legal advice or representation on the operation of the whistleblower regime qualifies for protection under the Corporations Act.



#### 3.4. Emergency disclosures

A disclosure of information (*emergency disclosure*) by an individual (*discloser*) qualifies for protection under this Policy if:

- (a) the discloser has previously made a qualifying disclosure to ASIC, APRA or a prescribed body (previous disclosure) (term defined below);
- (b) the *discloser* has reasonable grounds to believe that the information concerns a substantial and imminent danger to the health or safety of one or more persons or to the natural environment;
- (c) the discloser gives the body to which the previous disclosure was made a written notification that includes sufficient information to identify the previous disclosure and states that the discloser intends to make an emergency disclosure;
- (d) the *emergency disclosure* is made to a member of the Parliament of the Commonwealth or the Parliament of a State or legislature of a Territory or to a journalist (i.e. working in a professional capacity for a newspaper or magazine; radio or television broadcasting service; or an electronic service that is operated on a commercial basis or operated by a national broadcasting service and similar to a newspaper, magazine or radio or television broadcast); and
- (e) the extent of the information disclosed in the *emergency disclosure* is no greater than necessary to inform the recipient referred to under (d) of the substantial and imminent danger.

#### 3.5. Public interest disclosures

A disclosure of information (*public interest disclosure*) by an individual (*discloser*) qualifies for protection under the Corporations Act if:

- (a) the discloser has previously made a qualifying disclosure to ASIC, APRA or a prescribed body (previous disclosure);
- (b) at least 90 days have passed since the previous disclosure was made;
- (c) the *discloser* does not have reasonable grounds to believe that action is being, or has been, taken to address the matters to which the previous disclosure related;
- (d) the *discloser* has reasonable grounds to believe that making a further disclosure of the information in accordance with section 1317AAD of the Corporations Act would be in the public interest;
- (e) after the end of the period referred to under (b), the *discloser* gave the body to which the previous disclosure was made a written notification that includes sufficient information to identify the previous disclosure and states that the discloser intends to make a *public interest disclosure*;
- (f) the *public interest disclosure* is made to a member of the Parliament of the Commonwealth or the Parliament of a State or legislature of a Territory or to a journalist (within the meaning referred to under clause 3.4 (d) of this Policy); and
- (g) the extent of the information disclosed in the *public interest disclosure* is no greater than necessary to inform the recipient referred to under (f) of the misconduct or the improper state of affairs or circumstances referred to in subsection 1317AA(4) of the Corporations Act or the conduct referred to in subsection 1317AA(5) of the Corporations Act, as the case may be.

#### 4. What conduct may be the subject of a qualifying disclosure?

The conduct that may be the subject of a *qualifying disclosure* includes actual or suspected conduct by TH or NMH that is:

- (a) misconduct, or an improper state of affairs or circumstances in relation to TH or NMH;
- (b) contravention of any law administered by ASIC and/or APRA;
- (c) conduct that represents a danger to the public or the financial system; or
- (d) an offence against any other law of the Commonwealth that is punishable by imprisonment for a period of 12 months or more.



A discloser can still qualify for protection even if their disclosure turns out to be incorrect.

A disclosure of information that does not amount to a *qualifying disclosure* or a *disclosable matter* does not qualify for protection under the Corporations Act.

A member complaint or a disclosure of information by a person to the extent that the information disclosed concerns a *personal work-related grievance* of the person and does not concern a contravention, or an alleged contravention, of section 1317AC of the Corporations Act that involves detriment caused to the person/discloser or a threat made to the person/discloser, cannot be the subject of a qualifying disclosure and is not caught by, or dealt with by, this Policy.

A personal work-related grievance may still qualify for protection if:

- (e) it includes information about misconduct, or information about misconduct includes or is accompanied by a personal work-related grievance (mixed report);
- (f) TH or NMH (as the case may be) has breached employment or other laws punishable by imprisonment for a period of 12 months or more, engaged in conduct that represents a danger to the public, or the disclosure relates to information that suggests misconduct beyond the discloser's personal circumstances;
- (g) the discloser suffers from or is threatened with detriment for making a disclosure; or
- (h) the discloser seeks legal advice or legal representation about the operation of the whistleblower protections under the Corporations Act.

#### 5. Who can make a qualifying disclosure and who are eligible whistleblowers?

If an individual is, or has been, any of the following:

- (a) an officer of TH or NMH;
- (b) an employee of TH;
- (c) a contractor or subcontractor that supplies services or goods to TH or NMH (whether paid or unpaid);
- (d) an employee of a contractor or subcontractor that supplies services or goods to TH or NMH (whether paid or unpaid);
- (e) an individual who is an associate of TH or NMH;
- (f) a relative or dependent of an individual referred to in any of paragraphs (a) to (e) (this includes a spouse, parent or other linear ancestor, child or grandchild, and sibling); or
- (g) an individual prescribed by the regulations to the Corporations Act;

they can make a *qualifying disclosure*. These individuals are referred to as *eligible whistleblowers* in this Policy, and in the Corporations Act.

#### 6. How can a disclosure be made?

- (a) If you wish to make a disclosure in accordance with this Policy:
  - You can make a disclosure to an *eligible recipient* either in-person or by contacting an *eligible recipient* by telephone, mail or email. *Eligible recipients* are defined in the Definitions section under section 22, and the contact details of a number of *eligible recipients* are detailed in Schedule A.
  - You can make an anonymous disclosure by accessing the anonymous reporting tool online at <a href="https://erm.protecht.com.au/teachershealth/worms/client/app/anonymousWidget.html?widget=AnonymousRegisterEntry&appId=1&tablename=table\_110110">https://erm.protecht.com.au/teachershealth/worms/client/app/anonymousWidget.html?widget=AnonymousRegisterEntry&appId=1&tablename=table\_110110</a>.
- (b) Anonymous disclosures will be acted on whenever possible. However, the following are reasons why disclosers may wish to identify themselves, or at least provide a means of contact:



- the Corporations Act requires that the discloser's identity be kept confidential (subject to limited exceptions);
- it will be difficult to ensure protection from reprisal if the identity of the discloser is not known;
- if the discloser cannot be contacted for the purpose of obtaining further information to satisfy the *eligible recipient* that the conduct has occurred, the matter may not proceed, or it will be difficult to conduct an investigation; and
- the discloser cannot be contacted to be updated on the progress of the matter, including the findings made as part of the investigation.

## 7. What needs to be provided when making a qualifying disclosure?

When making a *qualifying disclosure*, a discloser should provide the following:

- (a) if not an anonymous disclosure, the discloser's name and contact details;
- (b) details of the person/s who have engaged or are alleged to have engaged in misconduct;
- (c) the nature of the misconduct, where it took place, and the date(s) on which it is alleged it took place;
- (d) the names of any witnesses to the alleged misconduct or who may be able to verify what the discloser is saying;
- (e) relevant events surrounding the issue;
- (f) whether the discloser did anything in response to the alleged misconduct;
- (g) whether the discloser is concerned about possible reprisal or detriment as a result of making the disclosure; and
- (h) any evidence the discloser has to support the allegation of misconduct (such as supporting documentation, file notes, diary of events).

A discloser should be clear and factual and avoid speculation, personal attacks or emotive language. Disclosers must not attempt to investigate the matter before making the disclosure because it may hinder any future investigation.

A discloser (provided they are not anonymous), will be asked to sign a form that captures details of their disclosure.

A discloser is encouraged to seek independent legal advice.

# 8. What protections does an eligible whistleblower have under the Corporations Act?

If an eligible whistleblower makes a qualifying disclosure to an eligible recipient:

- (a) the *eligible whistleblower* cannot be subject to legal liability (including disciplinary action) for making the disclosure;
- (b) no contractual or other remedy may be enforced, and no contractual or other right may be exercised, against the *eligible whistleblower* on the basis of the disclosure;
- (c) the information is not admissible in evidence against the *eligible whistleblower* in criminal proceedings or in proceedings for the imposition of a penalty, other than proceedings in respect of the falsity of the information;
- (d) anyone who directly or indirectly victimises or threatens the *eligible whistleblower* is guilty of an offence and/ or contravention and may be liable to pay damages; and
- (e) the person receiving the disclosure may commit an offence if they disclose the *eligible whistleblower's* identity or information that is likely to lead to the identification of the *eligible whistleblower*, without the *eligible whistleblower's* consent, to anyone except ASIC, the Australian Federal Police, APRA, a



prescribed body, or a legal practitioner (for the purpose of obtaining legal advice or legal representation in relation to the operation of the Corporations Act).

### 9. Are whistleblowers protected under other legislation?

A disclosure of information by an *eligible whistleblower* to the Commissioner of Taxation regarding *misconduct*, or an improper state of affairs or circumstances, in relation to the *tax affairs* of TH, or an associate (within the meaning of section 318 of the *Income Tax Assessment Act* 1936) of TH, or to a legal practitioner for the purposes of obtaining legal advice or representation in relation to the operation of the whistleblower protections, may also qualify for protection under the Tax Administration Act.

#### 10. The Reporting System

#### 10.1. Contact persons within TH and NMH

Disclosures may be made to an eligible recipient.

All disclosures (whether made by correspondence, phone calls or emails) from an *eligible whistleblower* will be treated as being submitted on a confidential basis, subject to any regulatory or legislative requirements or where the disclosure involves a threat to life, property or may involve, or potentially involve, illegal activities. If a decision is made to investigate a disclosure, details of the disclosure may be revealed in order to investigate the disclosure.

Where a person is contemplating making a disclosure and is concerned about approaching an *eligible recipient*, particularly in the workplace, he or she can contact the relevant person and request a meeting in a discreet location away from the workplace, or can make an anonymous disclosure.

#### 11. Roles and Responsibilities

#### 11.1. Eligible whistleblowers

Eligible whistleblowers are encouraged to make disclosures in accordance with these procedures.

All employees of TH have an important role to play in supporting those who have made a *qualifying disclosure*. They must refrain from any activity that is, or could be perceived to be, victimisation or harassment of a person who makes a qualifying disclosure. Furthermore, they should protect and maintain the identity of a person they know or suspect to have made a qualifying disclosure.

#### 11.2. Eligible recipients

The *eligible recipient* will:

- (a) be a contact point for general advice for any person wishing to make a disclosure;
- (b) where possible, make arrangements for a disclosure to be made privately and discreetly and, if necessary, away from the workplace;
- (c) receive any disclosure made orally or in writing on a confidential basis;
- (d) commit to writing any disclosure made orally;
- (e) impartially assess the allegation and determine whether it is a disclosable matter;
- (f) take all necessary steps to ensure the identity of the *eligible whistleblower* and the identity of the person who is the subject of the disclosure, are kept confidential;



- (g) assess whether further investigation of the disclosure is appropriate, and if so, appoint an Investigation Officer (see section 11.3), and with the *eligible whistleblower's* consent, forward the disclosure and any supporting evidence available, to the Investigation Officer;
- (h) if it is determined that there is insufficient information or evidence to warrant further investigation, inform the *eligible whistleblower* at the earliest possible opportunity that no further action will be taken:
- (i) as far as is reasonably possible, receive all phone calls, emails and letters from the *eligible whistleblower* seeking to make a disclosure;
- (j) be responsible for overseeing and co-ordinating an investigation where an Investigation Officer has been appointed;
- (k) appoint by agreement with the *eligible whistleblower* who is a current employee a Support Officer (see section 11.4) to support the *eligible whistleblower*;
- (I) protect the *eligible whistleblower* from *detriment*;
- (m) where possible, advise the *eligible whistleblower* of the outcome of an investigation into a disclosure;
- (n) establish and manage a confidential recording system; and,
- (o) liaise with the CEO of TH or other *eligible recipients*, as appropriate.

#### 11.3. Investigation Officer

If a decision is made to investigate a disclosure, the Investigation Officer will be responsible for carrying out an internal investigation into a disclosure. An investigator may be a person from within TH, or a consultant engaged for that purpose.

The Investigation Officer should follow best practice in investigations and be fair and independent of either the business unit concerned, the *eligible whistleblower*, or any person who is the subject of the disclosure.

#### 11.4. Support Officer

The Support Officer is responsible for providing support to the *eligible whistleblower* if they are a current employee. The Support Officer:

- (a) will examine the immediate protection needs of the *eligible whistleblower* who has made a disclosure and seek to foster a supportive work environment;
- (b) will advise the *eligible whistleblower* of the legislative and administrative protections available to him or her:
- (c) will listen and respond to any concerns of harassment, intimidation or victimisation in reprisal for making a disclosure;
- (d) will try and manage the expectations of the *eligible whistleblower*; and
- (e) may be a person from within TH, or a consultant engaged for that purpose.

#### 12. Identity of whistleblower

If an *eligible whistleblower* makes a disclosure of information that qualifies for protection under the Corporations Act or the Taxation Administration Act, the *eligible whistleblower* or any other person, is not required to disclose the identity of the *eligible whistleblower* without the whistleblower's consent. There are exceptions to this, such as TH or NMH are compelled to do so by law, or TH or NMH considers it is necessary to make a disclosure to a regulator under legislation.



The other circumstances in which a person may disclose information obtained about a disclosure include:

- (a) where exercising the functions of a director, secretary or senior manager of the company and the disclosure is (relevantly) made to ASIC, to APRA, to the Commissioner of Taxation, or to a member of the Australian Federal Police; or
- (b) in circumstances where the law may require disclosure of the identity of the *eligible whistleblower* in legal proceedings.

TH and NMH (as the case may be) will take all reasonable steps to maintain confidentiality and ensure all files, whether paper or electronic, are securely kept and can only be accessed by the person to whom the disclosure was made, the Investigation Officer or Support Officer (in relation to providing support to the *eligible whistleblower* who is a current employee).

#### 13. Collating information

The CEO will establish a secure register to record information, and to generally keep account of the status of the *eligible whistleblower* disclosures for TH and NMH. The register will be confidential and will not record any information that may identify an *eligible whistleblower*.

The register may contain the following information:

- (a) the number and types of disclosures made during the year; and
- (b) any recommendations made by TH or NMH (as the case may be).

#### 14. Receiving and assessing disclosures

Where a disclosure of information that amounts to a *disclosable matter* has been received by an *eligible recipient*, an investigation may be carried out if the disclosure warrants further investigation, and the disclosure relates to an employee or consultant/ contractor of TH or NMH, or a member of the TH Board or NMH Board.

A disclosure made against a member of the Board will be referred to the Chairperson, except if the disclosure is made against the Chairperson, then it will be referred to the CEO.

Where a disclosure is made to a member of the TH Board or NMH Board about a disclosable matter involving the Chairperson and the CEO, the board member should seek external legal advice to determine how best to handle the disclosure. Board members can submit invoices for external legal advice regarding disclosures anonymously to the Chief Financial Officer.

#### 15. Investigations

#### 15.1. Introduction

Where a decision is made to investigate a disclosure, an investigator will be appointed to carry out the investigation.

Such investigation should be conducted by the Investigation Officer. The investigation should be conducted in an objective, independent and confidential manner. The Investigation Officer should be independent of the business unit in respect of which allegations have been made or are concerned, the *eligible whistleblower* (if known), or any person being the subject of the disclosure.



The objectives of the investigation will be to:

- (a) collate information relating to the disclosure and the allegations as quickly as possible. This may involve taking steps to protect or preserve documents, material and equipment;
- (b) consider the information collected;
- (c) maintain procedural fairness in the treatment of the person who is the subject of the disclosure; and
- (d) make findings, after considering all available information, as to whether the matters alleged in the disclosure are substantiated or not.

#### 15.2. Investigation Plan

Unless TH determines the circumstances warrant a different approach, the Investigation Officer will prepare an investigation plan for approval by the recipient of the disclosure. The plan will list the issues to be substantiated and it will address the following issues:

- (a) what is alleged?
- (b) how is the investigation to be conducted?
- (c) what resources are required?
- (d) what witnesses need to be questioned?

At the commencement of the investigation, the *eligible whistleblower* (if known), should be contacted by the Investigation Officer and:

- (a) notified that the Investigation Officer has been appointed to conduct the investigation;
- (b) asked to clarify any matters relating to the disclosure;
- (c) asked to provide any additional material he or she might have in relation to the disclosure; and
- (d) informed of expected timeframes for the investigation.

The Investigation Officer will be sensitive to the *eligible whistleblower's* possible fear of reprisals and will be aware of the statutory protections provided to the *eligible whistleblower*.

#### 15.3. Procedural fairness

Procedural fairness will be afforded to any person who is mentioned in a disclosure that qualifies for protection, including those who are the subject of a disclosure.

#### 15.4. Conduct of the investigation

The Investigation Officer will make notes of all the discussion and telephone calls undertaken, and all interviews with witnesses may be recorded with the permission of each witness. All information gathered in an investigation will be stored securely. Interviews will be conducted in private and the Investigation Officer will take all reasonable steps to protect the identity of the *eligible whistleblower*. Where disclosure of the identity of the *eligible whistleblower* cannot be avoided and is reasonably necessary in order to investigate the disclosure and due to the nature of the allegations, the Investigation Officer will warn the *eligible whistleblower* and where relevant, his or her Support Officer of this probability.

It is within the discretion of the Investigation Officer to allow any witness to have legal or other representation or support during the interview. If a witness has a special need for legal representation or support, permission should be granted.



#### 15.5. Reporting requirements

Where possible, the person to whom a disclosure was made, will ensure the *eligible whistleblower* is advised of the findings of the investigation. However, the *eligible whistleblower* will not receive a copy of the Investigation Officer's report or any other documents provided to the Investigation Officer in the course of the investigation.

#### 16. Action taken after the investigation

#### 16.1. Action to be taken

Where an investigation substantiates an allegation arising from the disclosure, the person who is the subject of the disclosure may, if they are a current employee or contractor, be subject to disciplinary action, including termination of their employment or engagement.

Where the investigation substantiates an allegation arising from the disclosure, the recipient of the disclosure will report this finding to the *eligible whistleblower*.

#### 16.2. Investigator's final report

At the end of the investigation, the Investigation Officer will submit a written report of his or her findings to the recipient of the disclosure. The report will contain:

- (a) the allegation/s;
- (b) an account of all relevant information received and, if the Investigation Officer has rejected evidence as being unreliable, the reasons for this opinion being formed; and,
- (c) the findings reached and the basis for them.

The report will be accompanied by:

- (a) the transcript or other record of any oral evidence taken, including audio recordings; and
- (b) all documents, statements or other exhibits received by the Investigation Officer during the course of the investigation.

The report will not, however, disclose particulars likely to lead to the identification of the *eligible whistleblower*, unless the *eligible whistleblower* has consented to their identity being revealed. As noted above, the *eligible whistleblower* will not be provided with a copy of the report.

#### 17. Providing support to a whistleblower

#### 17.1. Commitment to protecting an eligible whistleblower

TH and NMH are committed to the protection of *eligible whistleblowers* from being subject to *detriment*, or detrimental conduct (including victimisation) for making a *qualifying disclosure*.

If a person makes a disclosure that qualifies for protection under the Corporations Act:

(a) the person is not subject to any civil, criminal or administrative liability (including disciplinary action) for making the disclosure; and



- (b) no contractual or other remedy may be enforced, and no contractual or other right may be exercised, against the person on the basis of the disclosure; and
- (c) the information is not admissible in evidence against the **whistleblower** in criminal proceedings or proceedings for the imposition of penalty, other than proceedings in respect of the falsity of the information.

#### 17.2. Threatening or causing detriment to an eligible whistleblower

If an eligible whistleblower reports any conduct that would amount to a detriment, the recipient will:

- (a) record details of the incident and/or conduct;
- (b) advise the *eligible whistleblower* of his or her rights under this Policy and the Corporations Act; and
- (c) advise the recipient of the disclosure of the detriment.

The taking of any *detriment* against an *eligible whistleblower* for the making of a disclosure may be an offence and/ or contravention as well as grounds for making a further disclosure. Where any threat to cause *detriment* to an *eligible whistleblower* is made, or any conduct that would amount to a detriment is reported, the recipient of the initial whistleblowing disclosure, will treat the report as a new disclosure.

#### 17.3. Eligible whistleblower implicated in misconduct

TH and NMH acknowledge that the act of whistleblowing should not shield the *eligible whistleblower* from the reasonable consequences flowing from any involvement in misconduct or other matters that are the subject of a qualifying disclosure. However, in some circumstances, an admission may be a mitigating factor when considering disciplinary action. Where a person who makes a disclosure is implicated in misconduct, TH or NMH (as the case may be) will consider the appropriate next steps.

The CEO (or the Chairperson, if the CEO is the subject of the disclosure), will make the final decision as to whether disciplinary action or other action will be taken against an *eligible whistleblower*. Where disciplinary or other action relates to conduct that is the subject of the *eligible whistleblower's* disclosure, the disciplinary or other action will only be taken after the disclosed matter has been dealt with.

Where appropriate, TH or NMH, as the case may be, will document the reasons why the disciplinary or other action is being taken, and the reasons why the action is not in retribution for the making of the disclosure. The *eligible whistleblower* will be advised of the action to be taken, and of any mitigating factors that have been taken into account.

#### 18. Management of the persons against whom a disclosure has been made

TH and NMH recognise that persons against whom disclosures are made must be supported during the handling and investigation of disclosures. TH and NMH, as the case may be, will to the extent that they are able, maintain the confidentiality of the person who is the subject of the disclosure during the assessment and investigation process. Where investigations do not substantiate disclosures, the findings of the investigation, will be marked confidential.



The recipient of a disclosure will ensure that the person who is the subject of any disclosure being investigated is:

- (a) informed as to the substance of the allegations; and
- (b) given the opportunity to respond to the allegations.

Where the allegation in a disclosure has been investigated, and the person who is the subject of the disclosure is aware of the allegations or the facts of the investigation, the recipient of the disclosure will, where possible, advise the person who is the subject of the disclosure of the findings of the investigation. They are not however, entitled to a copy of the investigation report or any documents provided to the Investigation Officer during the course of the investigation.

TH and NMH (as the case may be) will give its support to a person who is the subject of a disclosure where the allegations contained in a disclosure are clearly wrong or unsubstantiated. If the matter has been publicly disclosed, the CEO will consider any request by that person to issue a statement of support setting out that the allegations were clearly wrong or unsubstantiated.

#### 19. Amendments to Schedule A

It is recognised that staff changes may from time to time require changes to Schedule A. It is therefore part of this policy that the CEO of TH is authorised to amend Schedule A as appropriate when changes at Board and Senior Management level occur.

# 20. Availability of this Policy

This Policy will be:

- (a) available on TH's intranet and TH's/NMH's website;
- (b) provided to an officer or employee if they make a qualifying disclosure to TH or NMH; and
- (c) retained by the Company Secretary.

#### 21. Breach of this Policy

All incidents of non-adherence to this Policy will be addressed in accordance with this Policy and may, in the case of TH employees, be the subject of disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

#### 22. Definitions

The following words have these meanings in this document, unless the context requires otherwise:

APRA means the Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority.

**ASIC Act** means the Australian Securities and Investments Commission Act 2001 (Cth) as amended from time to time.

Corporations Act means the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) as amended from time to time.



#### **Detriment** includes (without limitation) any of the following:

- (a) dismissal of an employee;
- (b) injury of an employee in his or her employment;
- (c) alteration of an employee's position or duties to his or her disadvantage;
- (d) discrimination between an employee and other employees of TH;
- (e) harassment or intimidation of a person;
- (f) harm or injury to a person, including psychological harm;
- (g) damage to a person's property;
- (h) damage to a person's reputation;
- (i) damage to a person's business or financial position;
- (j) any other damage to a person.

#### A disclosable matter is either:

- (a) a disclosure of information where the *eligible whistleblower* has reasonable grounds to suspect that the information concerns *misconduct*, or an *improper state of affairs or circumstances* in relation to:
  - (i) TH; or
  - (ii) a related body corporate of TH; or
- (b) a disclosure of information where the *eligible whistleblower* has reasonable grounds to suspect that the information indicates that any of the following:
  - (i) TH, or an officer or employee of TH;
  - (ii) a related body corporate of TH, or an officer or employee of a related body corporate of TH; has engaged in conduct that:
    - a. constitutes an offence against, or a contravention of, a provision of any of the following:
      - (A) the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth);
      - (B) the ASIC Act 2001 (Cth);
      - (C) the Banking Act 1959 (Cth);
      - (D) the Financial Sector (Collection of Data) Act 2001 (Cth);
      - (E) the *Insurance Act 1973* (Cth);
      - (F) the Life Insurance Act 1995 (Cth);
      - (G) the National Consumer Credit Protection Act 2009 (Cth);
      - (H) the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) Act 1993 (Cth);
      - (I) an instrument made under an Act referred to in any of subparagraphs (A) to (H); or
    - b. constitutes an offence against any other law of the Commonwealth that is punishable by imprisonment for a period of 12 months or more; or
    - c. represents a danger to the public or the financial system.

#### An eligible recipient means each of the following in relation to TH or NMH:

- (a) an officer or senior manager of TH or NMH, or a related body corporate;
- (b) an auditor, or a member of an audit team conducting an audit of TH or NMH, or a related body corporate;
- (c) an actuary of TH or NMH, or a related body corporate; or
- (d) a registered tax agent or BAS agent (within the meaning of the *Tax Agent Services Act* 2009 (Cth)) who provides tax agent services or BAS services to TH or NMH (in the case of disclosures concerning the tax affairs of TH).

#### Eligible whistleblower means an individual who is, or has been, any of the following:

(a) an officer of TH or NMH;



- (b) an employee of TH or NMH;
- (c) a contractor or subcontractor that supplies services or goods to TH or NMH (whether paid or unpaid);
- (d) an employee of a contractor or subcontractor that supplies services or goods to TH or NMH (whether paid or unpaid);
- (e) an individual who is an associate of TH or NMH;
- (f) a relative or dependent of an individual referred to in any of paragraphs (a) to (e) (this includes a spouse, parent or other linear ancestor, child or grandchild, and sibling); or
- (g) an individual prescribed by the regulations to the Corporations Act.

#### Information that:

- (a) indicates *a danger to the public* or *a danger to the financial system* is intended to cover a broad range of conduct that poses significant risk to public safety or the stability of, or confidence in, the financial system, whether or not it is in breach of any law; or,
- (b) concerns *an improper state of affairs or circumstances* in relation to TH or a related body corporate of TH, may not involve unlawful conduct but may indicate a systemic issue that would assist the relevant regulator in performing its functions.

Investigation Officer means a person or persons being a director or manager or a consultant of TH or NMH who has responsibility for conducting preliminary investigations into reports received from an *eligible* whistleblower. A person who is the recipient of a disclosure should not also be appointed as an Investigation Officer in respect of the disclosure.

misconduct or an improper state of affairs or circumstances in relation to TH or NMH includes conduct that is dishonest, fraudulent, illegal, in breach of laws, unethical, serious improper conduct, negligence, conduct that may cause financial or non-financial loss to TH or NMH, or be otherwise detrimental to the interests of TH or NMH, breach of trust and breach of duty, but does not include a personal work-related grievance. Examples of fraud include dishonest activity causing actual or potential financial loss to any person or entity including theft of moneys or other property by employees or persons external to the entity and whether or not deception is used at the time, immediately before or immediately following the activity. It also includes the deliberate falsification, concealment, destruction or use of falsified documentation used or intended for use for a normal business purpose or the improper use of information or position.

**personal work-related grievance** has the same meaning as in the Corporations Act. It includes but is not limited to:

- (a) a grievance about any matter in relation to the discloser's employment, or former employment, having (or tending to have) implications for the discloser personally and doesn't have significant implications for THF or NMH (as the case may be);
- (b) an interpersonal conflict between the discloser and another employee;
- (c) a decision relating to the engagement, transfer or promotion of the discloser;
- (d) a decision relating to the terms and conditions of engagement of the discloser;
- (e) a decision to suspend, or terminate the engagement of the discloser, or otherwise to discipline the discloser.

qualifying disclosure means a disclosure that qualifies for protection under the Corporations Act.



**Support Officer** means a person from within TH or NMH or a consultant engaged for the purpose to provide support to an **eligible whistleblower**.

tax affairs means affairs relating to any tax imposed by or under, or assessed or collected under, a law administered by the Commissioner of Taxation.

**Taxation Administration Act** means the *Taxation Administration Act 1953* (Cth), as amended from time to time.

**whistleblower** means an **eligible whistleblower** with information, usually gained from his or her working relationship with an organisation, concerning illegal or unethical activities or misconduct within an organisation, and who reports that information.